
AGENDA OF THE PLANNING 
COMMISSION 

CITY OF BIRCHWOOD VILLAGE 
WASHINGTON COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

May 23rd, 2024 
7:00 P.M.

CALL TO ORDER  

PUBLIC FORUM 

APPROVE AGENDA 

REGULAR AGENDA 

A. Approve April 25, 2024, PC Meeting Minutes* (pp. 2-3)

B. 24-01-VB (425 Lake) Variance* (pp. 4-20)

1. Public Hearing
2. Review and Discuss Variance Application
3. Review City Planner Report
4. Discuss and Recommendations to City Council

a. Commission Finding of Fact
b. Conditions of Support/Commission Action

ADJOURN 

1



                     MEETING MINUTES (Draft)  

 Birchwood Planning Commission Regular Meeting  

                                               City Hall - 7:00 PM Regular Meeting 4/25/2024 

     Submitted by Michael Kraemer – secretary 

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: –– Andy Sorenson - Chairman, Michelle Maiers-Atakpu, 
Michael Kraemer, Casey Muhm 

COMMISSIONERS ABSENT: Michael McKenzie 

OTHERS PRESENT: Council Member Ryan Hankins  

  TO ORDER: Meeting called to order by Chairman Andy Sorenson at 7:03PM.   

1. PUBLIC FORUM  
a. none 

2. APPROVE AGENDA 
a. Motion by Muhm, 2nd by Maiers-Atakpu to approve agenda as presented. Vote: 

Yes -4, No – 0. Motion to approve agenda passed.  
3. REGULAR AGENDA 

a. Item A – Review/Approve February 22, 2024 Planning Commission Meeting 
Minutes. 

i. Motion by Sorenson, 2nd by Muhm to approve the minutes. Vote: Yes – 
3, No – 0, (Kraemer abstained to reflect his absence at the last meeting. 
)Motion to approve the minutes passed. 

b. Item B – Variance Findings Form 
i. The Planning Commission packets included for review three League of 

Minnesota Cities {LMC) variance related model documents and a copy 
of a revised sample of the Birchwood Village – Variance Findings Form 
prepared by Planning Commissioner Michael Mc Kenzie  

1. The titles of the sample documents included: 
a. Resolution Adopting Findings of Fact, LMC Model 

Resolution. 
b. Requirements for issuance of a zoning variance, LMC 

Model Ordinance. 
c. Variance Application, LMC Model Form 
d. Birchwood Village – Variance Findings Form edited by Mr. 

McKenzie.  
2. Examples of LMC Variance  

ii. Planning Commission Recommendations:  
1. Planning Commission worked through and agreed upon draft 

edits of the Birchwood Village – Variance Findings Form authored 

2



by Commissioner McKenzie. All changes were highlighted in the 
edited version. 

2. REQUEST FOR CITY STAFF ACTION: The Planning Commission 
asked that the City Administrator and City Attorney review and 
comment on the edited Birchwood Village – Variance Findings 
Form before the next Planning Commission meeting.  Planning 
Commissioner Casey Muhm will create the agreed upon Planning 
Commission edits to the form and forward it to City Administrator 
and City Attorney for review.  

4. ADJOURN 7:52 PM 
a. Motion by Maiers-Atakpu, 2nd by Kraemer to adjourn meeting. Vote: Yes - 4, No 

– 0. Motion passed.   

 

  

3



4/15/24X

Email confirmation received 4/15/24

4



5



6



7



8



9



Variance Application – 425 Lake Avenue 
1 

STAFF REPORT 
 
Meeting Date(s):  May 23, 2024 Planning Commission 
    June 11, 2024 City Council 
 
Scope: OHWL Setback Variance 
Applicant:    Schifsky Companies, LLC 

                                    
Representative:  Carson Schifsky 
Property Location:  425 Lake Avenue 
    
 
        Report prepared by Ben Wikstrom, Planning Consultant 

 
ATTACHMENTS 

1. Application 
2. Survey/site plan 
3. Pictures 

 
BACKGROUND 
Schifsky Companies, LLC (Carson Schifsky) has applied for a variance to allow construction of 
a retaining wall within the Ordinary High Water Line setback from White Bear Lake.  The 
property can be seen in the aerial below, taken from the Washington County GIS website: 
 

 
 

10



Variance Application – 425 Lake Avenue 
2 

SURROUNDING USES 
North: White Bear Lake 
East:  Single-family home 
South: Lake Avenue and City park 
West: Single-family home 
 
PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION 
The applicant is proposing to construct the retaining wall to mitigate erosion problems that are 
occurring on site.  The top of wall would be 12” in width, for a length of 33’.  The area of impact 
is shown on the pictures below, followed by an example of the type of wall (brochure attached). 
 

   
 

11



Variance Application – 425 Lake Avenue 
3 

 
 
The appliicant is also proposing replacement of an existing decking area, with “similar 
dimensions” according to written correspondence with the homeowner.  The deck may need to 
be shifted slightly to the east to allow for proper and effective construction of the retaining wall. 
The deck must remain the same size or be smaller.  No pictures of the deck were available at 
the time of this report, although the location is called out on the survey that was submitted. 
 
 

 

12



Variance Application – 425 Lake Avenue 
4 

 
 
 
APPLICANT COMMENT 
From the application: 
 

 
 

 
 
 
STAFF ANALYSIS 
For an explanation of a variance analysis, here is an excerpt from the ordinance: 
 
SUBD. 1. 
A. Variances shall only be permitted 
i. when they are in harmony with the general purposes and intent of the ordinance and 
ii. when the variances are consistent with the comprehensive plan. 
B. Variances may be granted when the applicant for the variance establishes that there are 
practical difficulties in complying with the zoning ordinance. 
SUBD. 2. "Practical difficulties," as used in connection with the granting of a variance, means 
that: 
i. Special conditions or circumstances exist which are peculiar to the land, structure, or building 
involved. 

13



Variance Application – 425 Lake Avenue 
5 

ii. The condition which result in the need for the variance were not created by the applicant's 
action or design solution. The applicant shall have the burden of proof for showing that no other 
reasonable design solution exists. 
iii. The granting of a variance will result in no increase in the amount of water draining from the 
property. 
iv. Granting the variance will not impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent property, 
or unreasonably diminish or impair established property values within the surrounding area, or 
in any other respect impair the public health, safety, or welfare of the residents of the City. 
v. No variance shall be granted simply because there are no objections or because those who 
do not object outnumber those who do. 
vi. Financial gain or loss by the applicant shall not be considered if reasonable use for the 
property exists under terms of the Zoning Code. 
 
 
STAFF COMMENT 
The proposed retaining wall meets the above criteria for a variance, and will address a problem 
with erosion that is evident on the site.  The applicant must receive approval from the Rice 
Creek Watershed District, which is in process, and any approval of the variance should be 
contingent on receiving that approval.  Any other applicable approvals (WBCD, DNR) are also 
required prior to construction. 
 
One item of note is the impervious surface.  The survey shows a total impervious percentage on 
site of 40.2%, while the chart on the application shows 31.69%.  It appears that the existing 
pavers and concrete elsewhere on site were left off the chart.  The 33 s.f. of additional retaining 
wall is assumed to be correct for one tier of wall.  That is staff’s understanding of the proposed 
wall design based on correspondence from the applicant, and seems to make sense with a 50-
foot wide lot.  If that is the case, the proposed impervious percentage on the chart is calculated 
incorrectly (it adds 103 s.f. to the existing total, rather than just the new 33 s.f.).  The applicant 
should be present to clarify.  Regardless, the amount of impervious to be added is negligible, 
and necessary for the mitigation.  33 s.f. of additional surface would be 0.2%; 103 s.f. of 
additional surface would be 0.81%. 
 
As we have discussed before, most communities will not calculate the top of a wall as 
impervious, especially one at 12” wide, as there is no impact on runoff from that small width 
(many ordinances exclude sidewalks or other surfaces less than 3’ in width).  The other items 
that have been previously discussed with similar applications that also apply here are the fact 
that this lot is legally non-conforming based on the size and width of the lot (12,713 s.f. and 50’ 
in width) compared to current ordinance requirements (15,000 s.f. riparian lots and 80’ in width 
at the OHWL setback); and that the impervious limit is already exceeded, making that non-
conforming, as well.  Any change, whether negligible or not, will be increasing the non-
conformity.  Whether these items require additional variances to be granted or should be at 
least noted, and if the City Code should be reviewed to address the many non-conforming 
situations (and impervious regulations) in the City should be a topic of discussion. 
 
In this case, the proposed construction seems necessary to address a problem and the impact 
on stormwater is negligible or non-existent.   
 
 
 
 
 

14



Variance Application – 425 Lake Avenue 
6 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends approval of the variance application at 425 Lake Avenue, based on the 
following findings: 
 

1. A retaining wall is necessary to mitigate an erosion problem on the slope to the lake 
within the OHWL setback. 

2. A retaining wall is a reasonable request to mitigate the problem. 
3. The character of the neighborhood would not be altered with approval of the variance. 
4. Neighborhood property values will not be diminished with approval of the variance and 

construction of the wall. 
5. The slope of the property, creating the need for the wall and variance, was not 

established by the applicant. 
6. If the applicant receives approval of all necessary jurisdictional permits, the City concurs 

that the proposed construction is necessary and reasonable. 
7. The deck area to be replaced must be of the same size as or smaller than the existing 

structure. 
 
  

15



Fw: Fw: 425 Lake Street RCWD

Rebecca Kellen <Rebecca.Kellen@cityofbirchwood.com>
Mon 5/13/2024 9:56 AM
To: Carson Schifsky <carson@schifskycompanies.com> 
Cc: Ben Wikstrom <benwikstrom@gmail.com>; Alan Kantrud <hakantrud@protonmail.com>; AGrace@ricecreek.org
<AGrace@ricecreek.org>; Patrick Hughes <PHughes@ricecreek.org>; Andy Sorenson <asconstruction@me.com>; Michelle
Maiers-Atakpu <pmatakpu@comcast.net>; Mike Kraemer <mrkraemer50@gmail.com>; MICHAEL McKenzie
<mgmcke31@comcast.net>; Casey Muhm <casey.muhm@gmail.com> 
Bcc: margaret ford <margaret.ford@cityofbirchwood.com>; Ryan Hankins <ryan.hankins@cityofbirchwood.com>; kathy weier
<kathy.weier@cityofbirchwood.com>; Mark Foster <mark.foster@cityofbirchwood.com>; Justin McCarthy
<justin.mccarthy@cityofbirchwood.com> 

Hi Carson,
I hope you are doing well. I just wanted to let you know that we have received guidance from our
a�orney that any decision that is made with regard to the variance will need to be put on hold un�l the
permi�ng from RCDW is secure. You may want to begin the permi�ng process to avoid hold up
however, as you are aware, it is uncertain as to the outcome of the variance request un�l it goes through
the process. We are s�ll on tap for the variance to be reviewed at the 5/23/24 Planning
Commi�ee mee�ng at 7PM and then at the City Council Mee�ng on June 11th at 6:45PM. Please let me
know if you have any ques�ons. Thanks. 

Rebecca Kellen, MBA
City Administrator
City of Birchwood Village, MN
office: (651) 426-3403
fax: (651) 426-7747
email: rebecca.kellen@cityofbirchwood.com
website: http://www.cityofbirchwood.com/

Confidentiality Notice: The information contained in this e-mail communication and any attached
documentation may be privileged, confidential or otherwise protected from disclosure. They are intended for the
sole use of intended recipient(s). Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure, distribution or copying is prohibited.
The unauthorized disclosure or interception of e-mail is a federal crime. See 18 U.S.C. SEC. 2517(4). If  you are
not the intended recipient, please contact the sender by replying to this e-mail and destroying/deleting all copies
of this message.

From: H.A.Kantrud <hakantrud@protonmail.com>
Sent: Monday, May 13, 2024 9:42 AM
To: Rebecca Kellen <Rebecca.Kellen@cityo�irchwood.com>
Cc: Ben Wikstrom <benwikstrom@gmail.com>
Subject: Re: Fw: 425 Lake Street RCWD
 
We would typically put the decision from our body on hold until they have that in-hand...

H. Alan

"Conservatives pride themselves on resisting change, which is as it should be. But intelligent deference to
tradition and stability can evolve into intellectual sloth and moral fanaticism, as when conservatives

16

http://www.cityofbirchwood.com/


simply decline to look up from dogma because the effort to raise their heads and reconsider is too
great."    William F. Buckley

*********************************************
Legal Notices: Privileged and Confidential Communication. This electronic transmission, and any documents attached
hereto, (a) are protected by the Electronic Communications Privacy Act (18 USC §§ 2510-2521); (b) may contain
confidential and/or legally privileged information; and (c) are for the sole use of the intended recipient named above.
If you have received this electronic message in error, immediately notify the sender toll free on (855) CELL-SITE,
delete this message from all computer memory and all electronic storage devices, destroy all printed and copied
documents that contain this message, and utterly erase your entire mind. Any disclosure, copying, distribution, or use
of the contents of the information received in error is strictly prohibited, and not very nice, either.  IRS Circular 230
Disclosure: Any tax advice contained in this communication including any attachments hereto is not intended or
written to be used-and cannot be used-for the purpose of avoiding tax-related penalties under the Internal Revenue
Code, or promoting, marketing or recommending to another party any matters addressed herein. Basically, don't
commit tax fraud. The IRS goons will get you if you do...they know where you live, and the NSA knows what you write,
think, and eat for lunch. E-SIGNATURE Notice: Unless specifically indicated in the body of this message, none of the
identifying marks (or even the unidentified chicken scratches) contained in this electronic message are intended by
the writer to be a ‘signature’ or ‘electronic signature’ or ‘electronic authorization’ within the meaning of P.L. 106-229,
Cal. Civil Code 1633.1 et seq, N.M Stat. § 14-3-15.2 et seq, or any other local, state, federal, tribal, international, or
galactic law, statute, code, rule, or deep dark desire. Remember, while I can explain it to you, I can’t understand it for
you.

Sent with Proton Mail secure email.

On Monday, May 13th, 2024 at 9:35 AM, Rebecca Kellen <Rebecca.Kellen@cityofbirchwood.com>
wrote:

Hi Alan,
I received this from RCWD in regard to the variance we have on tap for the upcoming
planning commission mee�ng. I believe this would cover our needs with respect to the
RCDW permit they will be required to have. They want to make sure the variance is
approved prior to ge�ng that permit. Please confirm that this would suffice for our
purposes, if that is the case. Thanks. 

Rebecca Kellen, MBA
City Administrator
City of Birchwood Village, MN
office: (651) 426-3403
fax: (651) 426-7747
email: rebecca.kellen@cityofbirchwood.com
website: http://www.cityofbirchwood.com/

Confidentiality Notice: The information contained in this e-mail communication and any attached
documentation may be privileged, confidential or otherwise protected from disclosure. They are
intended for the sole use of intended recipient(s). Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure,
distribution or copying is prohibited. The unauthorized disclosure or interception of e-mail is a
federal crime. See 18 U.S.C. SEC. 2517(4). If  you are not the intended recipient, please contact the
sender by replying to this e-mail and destroying/deleting all copies of this message.

17

https://proton.me/
http://www.cityofbirchwood.com/


From: Anna Grace <AGrace@ricecreek.org>
Sent: Monday, May 13, 2024 9:27 AM
To: Rebecca Kellen <Rebecca.Kellen@cityo�irchwood.com>
Cc: Patrick Hughes <PHughes@ricecreek.org>
Subject: 425 Lake Street RCWD
 
Good Morning Rebecca,
 
I am reaching out regarding the 425 Lake Street backyard landscaping project.
 
The landscaper has indicated the City would like to see comments from Rice Creek ahead
of the May 23rd Planning Commission meeting.
 
I have relayed to the landscaper a Rule E, Floodplain Alteration and Rule D, Erosion and
Sediment Control permit will be required. The bracketed information below was shared
with Schifsky Companies.
 
Is this sufficient for the Planning Commission’s variance review?
 
[ If the project applies for RCWD permit application with the guidance below, the project is
found to be complaint with Rules E and D, the 48-hour notice to the Board is complete, the
project addresses any CAPROC items, RCWD would then issue the permit. From review of
the current plans, no RCWD variance is required for the project. Typical Administrative
permit review process for work within the floodplain.
 
From review of the plans a RCWD permit for Rule D and E will be required.

Rule E, Floodplain Alteration the RCWD 100-year regulatory floodplain elevation for
the site extends off White Bear Lake and is 927.2 NAVD 88. Work within the floodplain
triggers Rule E and D.
Rule D, Erosion and Sediment Control Plans  Rule 2(a)(3), Any land-disturbing
activity that requires a District permit under a rule other than Rule D.”

 
DNR regulates below the OHW. The RCWD regulatory floodplain elevation off White Bear
Lake is 927.2 NAVD 88.
 
General RCWD permit submittal guidance:

1. The RCWD application form can be found here. The application must be signed by the
current landowner(s). From review of Washington County Maps, the current listed
owner of the parcel is Coyleen Davidson.

2. Please deliver or mail the application fee in the form of a check to the RCWD office.
The total application fee is $300. The RCWD office is located at 4325 Pheasant Ridge
Dr. NE #611, Blaine, MN, 55449. The building is open Monday through Friday from
8:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m.

3. Please create a short project narrative discussing the proposed work.
1. Be sure to include further details of proposed deck and stairs within narrative –

concrete pilings, etc.?
4. Items to add to the survey for RCWD:

18

https://www.ricecreek.org/wp-content/uploads/Rule-E-RCWD-Rules-adopted-12-9-20.pdf
https://www.ricecreek.org/wp-content/uploads/Rule-D-RCWD-Rules-adopted-12-9-20.pdf
https://www.ricecreek.org/wp-content/uploads/RCWD-Permit-Application-Form-1-6-2023.pdf


1. Add erosion control and stabilization methods to the plan set with a key.
Erosion control measures should be located down gradient of all land
disturbing activities. As land disturbance is proposed within 50 feet of
a waterbody redundant erosion control BMPs are recommended in
these locations.
Here is a MPCA link for additional BMP guidance,
https://stormwater.pca.state.mn.us/index.php/Sediment_control_pra
ctices_-_Perimeter_controls_for_disturbed_areas
For disturbed areas what is the proposed stabilization method
seeding, sodding, etc.?

2. Update work areas/land disturbance areas to include stairs and deck.
3. Based on the below RCWD definitions, state the total area of proposed new

and/or reconstructed impervious surface. If none, please state – if removing
impervious surface please state the square footage:

RCWD defines Impervious Surface as, a compacted surface or a surface
covered with material (i.e., gravel, asphalt, concrete, Class 5, etc.) that
increases the depth of runoff compared to natural soils and land cover.
Including but not limited to roads, driveways, parking areas, sidewalks
and trails, patios, tennis courts, basketball courts, swimming pools,
building roofs, covered decks, and other structures.
RCWD defines, Reconstruction as, removal of an impervious surface such
that the underlying structural aggregate base is effectively removed, and
the underlying native soil exposed.

4. State the RCWD regulatory floodplain elevation of White Bear Lake 927.2 NAVD 88
5. The project will need to calculate any cut (removal) and fill within the

floodplain. Compensatory floodplain storage volume is not required for a one-time
deposition of up to 100 cubic yards of fill, per parcel, if there is no adverse impact to
the 100-Year Flood Elevation. If 100 cubic yards or greater is proposed, mitigation is
required for the entirety of fill. Calculations showing worked out methodology will
need to be provided between OHW and RCWD 100-year floodplain. For example, this
calculation could be (LxWxD)/27 = cubic yards. Ensure to include rock, sand, dirt,
concrete, etc.

 
All application items, except for the fee, can be submitted electronically to my email address.
 
General RCWD Administrative Permit Process Timeline:

Applica�on items are submi�ed and reviewed for completeness (my guidance list above are
the intake items needed).
Once any incomplete items (missing items) are addressed, the applica�on moves onto review.
RCWD staff will reach out with any comments or concerns. Given workload and �me of year
this is typically 10-15 business days.
Once any comments and concerns are addressed, the applica�on will be no�ced for the 48-
hour comment period to the Board for Administra�ve CAPROC (Condi�onal Approval Pending
Receipt of Changes). 
Once any CAPROC items are addressed by the project team RCWD can issue the permit. ]

 
Thank you,

19

https://stormwater.pca.state.mn.us/index.php/Sediment/control/practices/-/Perimeter/controls/for/disturbed/areas
https://stormwater.pca.state.mn.us/index.php/Sediment/control/practices/-/Perimeter/controls/for/disturbed/areas


 
Anna Grace
Regulatory Technician
Rice Creek Watershed District
4325 Pheasant Ridge Dr. NE, #611
Blaine, MN 55449-4539
Direct: (763) 398-3071
agrace@ricecreek.org
 

 
 

20

mailto:agrace@ricecreek.org

	May 23 2024 PC Meeting Agenda FINAL.pdf
	PC Agenda Packet DRAFT 1.pdf
	May 23 2024 PC Meeting Agenda DRAFT.pdf
	PC Agenda Packet DRAFT.pdf
	4.25.2024 Birchwood PC Regular Meeting Minutes (Draft) (1).pdf
	24-01-VB (425 Lake) ALL.pdf
	24-01-VB (425 Lake).pdf
	PC Staff Report - 425 Lake Avenue Variance.pdf
	RCDW 425 Lake.pdf






